PUBLIC HEALTH ADMINISTRATION
www.vbcassdhd.org 269.621.3143

Wednesday, December 3, 2025

The Van Buren/Cass District Board of Health will hold their regularly scheduled meeting on
Wednesday, December 10, 2025, at 3:00 pm. The meeting will be held at the Van Buren
ISD Conference Center at 490 S Paw Paw St. Lawrence, Ml in the Loring Conference Room
as well as on Microsoft Teams.

AGENDA
1. Roll call
2. Minutes of Previous Meeting
3. Finance Director’s Report
4, Administrator/Health Officer’s Report
5. Nursing Report
6. Medical Director
7. Dental Report
8. Environmental Health Report
9. Health Promotions Report

10. Other Business
11. Public Comment

12. Adjournment

Dowagiac 302 S. Front St. Dowagiac, Ml 49047 | Lawrence 260 South Street, Lawrence, M| 49064

1



Van Buren/Cass District Health Department Minutes
11/12/2025

Chairperson Leary called the meeting to order at 3:02pm at the Van Buren/Cass District Health
Department, 302 So Front Street, Dowagiac M1 in the Community Center on Wednesday, November 12,
2025. Roll call taken.

Board members present: Jeremiah Jones, Tina Leary, Priscilla Gatties, Roseann Marchetti in-person and
Robert Linderman virtually

Board members absent: Randall Peat

Employees present: Nancy Desai, George Friday, Lauren Jaramillo, Dr. Andrew Malsbary, Danielle
Persky, Jenni Zordan, in-person and Kelly Adkins, Alisha Bartlett, Julie Beeching, Holly Young, Dr.
Larry Wile virtually

Others: Don Hanson, Sandy Hanson, Jerry Marchetti, Karen Tan in-person

The meeting started with an appreciation of Don Hanson’s tenure on the VVan Buren/Cass District Board
of Health. Persky honored his legacy as he started public service in 1962. Hanson’s environmental health
experience and historical knowledge were also highlighted.

October meeting minutes were reviewed. Motioned by Marchetti and second by Jones to approve the
meeting minutes as written. All voting yes, motion carried.

Finance Director’s Report

Desai and Persky gave the floor to Friday for the proposed environmental health fee increase. Friday
started by discussing the last time fees were reviewed in 2019. The goal will be to do so more often from
here on out. The board reviewed the comparison page showing the proposed increases do not go above
the average environmental health costs. The one highlighted as increasing by the largest amount is the
school cafeteria inspection fee. The reason is that the state used to only require one inspection per year,
but that has changed to two times a year. Noted is that the first water test is included in the permit, which
most other health departments do not provide. The revenue potential is $94,000. Friday discussed the
need to possibly review again next year as other environmental health departments are increasing this
year. Linderman asked about the appeals not having an increase. Friday responded that the last one was
three to four years ago. It’s already a cost deterrent but can be reviewed in the future if issues arise.

Motioned by Jones and second by Marchetti to approve the updated environmental health fee schedule as
written. All voting yes, motion carried. Friday thanked the board and stated the increase fees will be
executed on January 1, 2026.

Jones commented on the doubling of the fee if a septic or well system is placed without a permit. Friday
noted it doesn’t happen often, but it is often due to miscommunication between a homeowner and driller.

Expenditures Report
There was no expenditure report for October.
Administrator/Health Officer’s Report

Persky began by giving an update on the open board of health member role. She is meeting with Dr. Matt
Dommer to discuss interest and provide information on joining. The intent if interested would be to then



Van Buren/Cass District Health Department Minutes
11/12/2025

fill out the Van Buren County board application ahead of December, then instate the new board member
in January.

The meeting in January 2026 was also reviewed as the previous January board meeting couldn’t be held
until Van Buren and Cass Counties designate their chairpersons. Jones added that January 8th is the first
meeting in Cass County, but the next week is reserved for chairperson selection. Persky noted she is
amenable to cancelling the January meeting as it is also slow for the health department.

All directors were present at this meeting, either in-person or virtual. Persky led the directors in
introductions to the board. Persky moved to discuss the reduced hour workweek pilot as a follow-up from
October. After the board’s recommendation to review proposal without closing on Friday’s, Persky
brought the discussion to an October all staff meeting. All staff participated in a strategy workshop cross
divisionally with mutually agreed objectives. This gave administration clarity as to what staff would like
to see or not see in the future pilot. The concerns brought about were that staff working alone is a safety
hazard and hour reductions. Staff were interested in a better work-life balance that would come with
reduced hours and agreed Fridays were quiet. What came of this past month is a final proposal to the
board to pilot the hours of Monday to Thursday from 8:00am to 5:00pm and Friday from 8:00am to
12:00pm. Staff would provide consistent feedback through an organized evaluation plan.

Jones asked if this proposal could be reverted if needed. Persky agreed that yes, it could be, which is why
the evaluation plan is necessary. Another part of this is to improve the phone system and website tools
available to the public. This would look like scheduling appointments online, increasing payment options,
etc. Jones agreed it was important to have user-friendly options. Persky added that informing the board of
how service is delivered to our communities will be another important part of this pilot. Communication
with constituents is done differently in each division, so talking about service delivery will be necessary.

Gatties asked if paid lunch breaks were already in place. Persky answered no; paid lunches will be added
as part of this pilot. Gatties cautioned the importance of staff taking their legally required breaks. Gatties
asked if remote access to service delivery has been reviewed as potential. There is a USDA grant for rural
community healthcare organizations to improve IT infrastructure for the promotion of telehealth. Gatties
agreed to send this information to Persky.

Jones asked about the evaluation plan if this pilot is found not working. Persky answered that the
intention is to bring the board quarterly reports from the evaluation plan. The pilot can be stopped at any
time.

Linderman brought his concern about the original proposal of closing fully on Fridays, especially when
considering being open to constituents during emergencies. Jones answered that there are already
contingency plans in place for emergencies. Zordan agreed that plans are already in place as emergencies
occur outside of business hours. This is already an operational piece of work in emergency preparedness
and public health nursing. Linderman asked if a phone operator would manage the phone outside of these
proposed pilot hours. Persky responded that all staff would be on the same schedule. Outside of business
hours, the phone system is set to go through a dispatching system that can send those calling the non-
emergency or emergency lines as needed. Hospital staff with positive communicable disease results
already know this process with our clinical team being prepared to respond as needed.



Van Buren/Cass District Health Department Minutes
11/12/2025

Zordan added that the phone system and website have been identified as priorities. Linderman asked for
updates from IT on future work and a current update on staffing shortages affecting a person being at the
front desk and answering phones. Persky responded that clinical reception and administrative balances are
being reviewed through several exercises.

Gatties asked if a phone answering service has ever been considered. The one their clinic is being utilized
is a local service. Persky appreciated the feedback and would like to review this option. It’s important to
be creative during staff shortages. Leary asked what the entrance of the building is like for visitors
without a staff person at the front desk. Persky responded that signage is put at the front desk, and
administrative staff in Environmental Health and Administrative Services are available to answer
questions as needed.

Motioned by Jones and second by Gatties to approve the reduced hour workweek pilot. All voting yes,
motion carried.

Leary reiterated that an answering service might elevate some of these concerns. Leary noted the
incorporation of community feedback through customer surveys as a portion of the evaluation process.

Nursing and Medical Director Report

Beeching shared information on the ByHeart infant formula recall due to botulism cases. This information
is posted to the health department’s social media and website.

Dr. Wile highlighted his experience at the Michigan Premier Public Health Conference with strengthening
of contacts. He added that he has always had great experiences with the Board of Health member-at-large
candidate, Dr. Dommer. He would be a great addition and fit well on the board.

Dental Report

Persky walked through a dental outreach staff report on behalf of Emily Flowers. A portable dental unit is
being requested for purchase. The SEAL MI! program provided funding for this specific unit with
$12,291 granted for this purchase.

Motioned by Jones and second by Gatties to approve up to $12,000 funding for the portable dental unit.
All voting yes, motion carried.

Environmental Health Report
Updates are discussed in the written report.
Health Promotions Report

Zordan announced the awarding of the firearm safety grant to the health department for $123,813. This
will include two large media campaigns, education, and community outreach. Jones confirmed that the
goal is not to be divisive with political messaging around firearms. Zordan confirmed that the goal of this
project is education for gun safety. Persky added that this is a collaborative effort with partnership
organizations such as county sheriffs, state police, and mental health authorities. Leary noted the
highlights of safety and the vast number of hunters in this region.



Van Buren/Cass District Health Department Minutes
11/12/2025

Zordan reported that health promotions are preparing for SNAP benefit delays. Resources have been
posted on our website and social media. Details are still going back and forth, so it’s important to keep the
community informed.

There was no other business.

For public comment, Tan asked if the community and partnering organizations such as the sheriff will
sign off on the firearm safety media campaign. Zordan responded that the sheriff provided a letter of
support for the grant based on the grant submission and is a participating partner, but they will not
directly sign off. It is a multi-coordinated campaign. Tan asked if the language in this campaign will have
input from the public ahead of time. Zordan responded that it most likely will be after creation. The health
department will provide input on the language as the health department is spearheading the project.
Persky added that the committee created between the partner organizations will determine the strategy
and media design. Tan requested improved language, which Jones agreed with.

Tan asked if the 40-hour work week change will include a paid lunch. Persky responded yes.

Tan commented on Alana’s Foundation, which was highlighted in the board report. She noted the need to
be balanced with vaccination consent information for parents to make informed decisions.

Motion to adjourn at 3:55pm by Jones, second by Marchetti. The next regular District Board of Health
meeting is scheduled for December 10 at 3:00pm in the Van Buren ISD Conference Center at 490 So Paw
Paw Street, Lawrence, MI.

Tina Leary, Board of Health Chairperson

Danielle Persky, Health Officer

Lauren Jaramillo, Board of Health Secretary



Van Buren-Cass District Health Department

Check/Voucher Register -

Check Register - Board Report

From 10/1/2025 Through 10/31/2025

Item Document Check
No. Date Number Vendor Name Transaction Description Check Amount

1 10/24/2025 102425REG Various Employees 10/24/2025 Regular Payroll 178,453.16
2 10/10/2025 101025REG Various Employees 10/10/2025 Regular Payroll 171,813.06

10/28/2025 50152414 Internal Revenue Services Department of FIS/SS/Medicare Payroll Taxes - 10242025REG 39,957.00
3 Treasury

10/14/2025 64061474 Internal Revenue Services Department of FIT/SS/Medicare Payroll Taxes - 10102025REG 37,534.62
4 Treasury
5 10/1/2025 13018 Michigan Municipal Risk Property Liability Insurance Policy 10.01.25-03.31.26 27,354.50
6 10/1/2025 49403964 Blue Care Network of Michigan Health Insurance Premium - HMO 10.01.25-10.31.25 26,556.77
7 10/1/2025 49403957 Blue Care Network of Michigan Health Insurance Premium - POS - 10.01.25-10.31.25 24,628.72

10/10/2025 731003 MERS Municipal Employees' Retirement MERS Employee 457 Contribution - 10102025REG 19,275.07
8 System of Michigan

10/1/2025 13022 Van Buren Cass Community Health Lawrence Building Rent - October 2025 19,200.91

9 Properties

10/24/2025 731019 MERS Municipal Employees' Retirement MERS Employee 457 Contribution - 10242025REG 17,675.48
10 System of Michigan
11 10/24/2025 4579902096 State of Michigan MI State Withholding Tax - Oct 2025 11,687.16
12 10/14/2025 4560227684 State of Michigan MI State Withholding Tax - Sept 2025 10,983.47
13 10/21/2025 13046 Patterson Dental General Dental Supplies 10,104.47

10/24/2025 731018 MERS Municipal Employees' Retirement MERS Employer DC Plan Contributions - 10242025REG 9,255.68
14 System of Michigan

10/10/2025 731001 MERS Municipal Employees' Retirement MERS ER DC Contribution - 10102025REG 8,082.32
15 System of Michigan
16 10/21/2025 13052 Van Buren Intermediate School District Lawrence Bldg Util - Water/Sewer/Electric/Gas - June-Sept 7,853.63

10/1/2025 13021 Van Buren Cass Community Health Dowagiac Building Rent - October 2025 7,100.00

17 Properties
18 10/21/2025 13034 Sentage Corp DBA Dental Services Group Dental Laboratory Services 5,616.00
19 10/29/2025 13060 Delta Dental Dental Insurance - November 5,511.64
20 10/21/2025 13038 Benco Dental Company General Dental Supplies 5,278.60
21 10/29/2025 13072 Northwoods P3 Programming Support Block 4,100.00
22 10/15/2025 13765097 UMB Healthcare Services EE HSA Contributions - 10102025REG 3,814.99
23 10/24/2025 13787281 UMB Healthcare Services EE HSA Contributions - 10242025REG 3,814.99
24 10/29/2025 13054 Sentage Corp DBA Dental Services Group Dental Laboratories Services 3,621.00
25 10/10/2025 13033 Sentage Corp DBA Dental Services Group Dental Laboratory Services 3,605.50
26 10/29/2025 13059 Delta Dental Dental Insurance Premium - 10.01.25-10.31.25 2,967.22
27 10/1/2025 13019 Standard Insurance Company Life/STD Insurance Premiums - 10.01.25-10.31.25 2,949.36
28 10/31/2025 10312025 DP  Huntington National Bank CC Reconciliation 10.01.25-10.31.25 2,943.35
29 10/29/2025 13074 Pfizer Inc Comirnaty 0.1 mg/ml 30 doses Batch NA4457, Exp date 7.23.26 2,761.35
30 10/29/2025 13067 Knowledge Capital Alliance VMSG Dashboard Performance Mgt System 10 licenses 2,000.00
31 10/1/2025 13020 The Doctors Company Professional Liability Ins - L Wile 1,715.50
32 10/10/2025 13028 Garrett Laboratories Inc. Laboratory Services - E Coli/Nitrite/Nitrate/Coliforms 1,643.43
33 10/31/2025 10312025 ND  Huntington National Bank CC Reconciliation 10.01.25-10.31.25 1,631.25
34 10/21/2025 13039 Foune Well Drilling Laboratory Testing EColi/Coliform/Nitrate 1,600.00

10/29/2025 13070 National Association of County & City NACCHO LHD Health Department Membership - 2026 1,050.00
35 Health Officials
36 10/29/2025 13057 Altamont Handpiece Repair Dental Handpiece Repairs 1,019.97
37 10/29/2025 13079 United States Postal Service Postage Inventory 1,000.00
38 10/21/2025 13037 Dental Refund 967.00
39 10/29/2025 13056 Association for Dental Safety ADS - Dental Boot Camp Training 905.00
40 10/29/2025 13080 Van Buren Intermediate School District EPS Security Monitoring Oct-Dec 2025 883.92
41 10/29/2025 13062 Foster Swift Collins & Smith PC Professional Services Rendered Worker's Comp/ADA Interactiv 775.00
42 10/29/2025 13073 Patterson Dental General Dental Supplies 759.27
43 10/10/2025 13023 AFLAC Traditional and Direct AFLAC Premiums - Billing Period October 712.28
44 10/10/2025 13025 Benco Dental Company General Dental Supplies 702.11
45 10/1/2025 13017 Fidelity Security Life Insurance Co. Vision Insurance Premium October Billing Period 639.16
46 10/29/2025 13081 Verizon Wireless Cellular Phone Services - 09.09.25-10.08.25 604.81
47 10/29/2025 13061 Fidelity Security Life Insurance Co. Vision Insurance Premium - November Billing Period 568.94
48 10/29/2025 13063 Frontier Communications Faxline - Dowagiac 10/14/25-11/13/25 567.46
49 10/10/2025 V101020255  Taylor, Corrinne Mileage Reimbursement - Well 09.01.25-09.30.25 540.40
50 10/10/2025 101025REG Various Employees Cell Phone Reimbursements 480.00
51 10/10/2025 13032 Waste Management Waste Management Services - Dowagiac 10.01.25-10.31.25 478.18

10/29/2025 13065 Henry Schein Practice Medical Supplies 457.60
52 Solutions/Enterprise
53 10/10/2025 V10102025 3  McNair, Caitlin Mileage Reimbursement - Food/SRP Tng 09.01.25-09.30.25 452.90
54 10/10/2025 13024 Anterior Quest Liquid Dental Waste Removal - Lawrence 432.50
55 10/29/2025 13058 Benco Dental Company General Dental Supplies 427.32
56 10/10/2025 V10102025 4  Smith, Jessica Mileage Reimbursement - Food 09.01.25-09.30.25 367.22
57 10/21/2025 13036 Airgas USA, LLC Gases Cylinder Rental 342.95

10/21/2025 13045 Michigan Dept of Agriculture & Rural Food Services Licensing Fees 336.00
58 Development
59 10/10/2025 V10102025 6  TelNet Worldwide Desk Phone Services 10.01.25-10.31.25 320.68
60 10/21/2025 13051 United States Postal Service Postage Refill - Dowagiac 300.00

Date: 12/4/2025 9:18:52 AM 6 Page: 1



Van Buren-Cass District Health Department
Check/Voucher Register - Check Register - Board Report
From 10/1/2025 Through 10/31/2025

Item Document Check
No. Date Number Vendor Name Transaction Description Check Amount
61 10/29/2025 13068 Legal Shield Legal Services Premiums October 2025 258.20
62 10/21/2025 13041 Jarvis-Orr, Susan Septic Permit Not Required at This Time 250.00
10/21/2025 13042 Kalamazoo County Health & Community 2025 Annual Lab Tech Consultant 250.00
63 Svs
64 10/29/2025 13066 Khoury Johnson Leavitt Dental Consulting Services - October 2025 250.00
65 10/29/2025 13076 Staples Business Credit General Supplies - Pens/Paper/Disinfectant Cleaner 232.01
66 10/10/2025 V101020251  Eldred, Melissa Mileage Reimbursement - Hear/Vis 09.01.25-09.30.25 213.22
67 10/10/2025 13029 Gordon Water Systems Water Cooler Rental/Water Services 198.69
68 10/29/2025 V10292025 5  Friday, George Mileage Reimb 09/29-10/24 - Well/Septic Inspections 198.10
69 10/21/2025 V102120251  Lingo Telecom, LLC Elevator Emergency Phone Line 193.70
70 10/21/2025 13044 Michigan Ground Water Association MGWA Membership Fee - KKing 180.00
71 10/10/2025 V10102025 8  Wanberg, Sherri Mileage Reimbursement - Dental Assisting/SRP Tng 135.10
72 10/10/2025 13030 Hospital Network Healthcare Sharps Removal - Dowagiac 09.22.25 134.06
73 10/10/2025 13026 Dental Refund - DOS 09.10.25 132.00
74 10/29/2025 13086 Desai, Nancy Petty Cash Reimbursement 131.69
75 10/10/2025 13027 Frontier Communications Lawrence Fax Line 10.05.25-11.04.25 130.52
76 10/31/2025 10312025 JD  Huntington National Bank CC Reconciliation 10.01.25-10.31.25 122.99
77 10/29/2025 13069 Dental Refund 122.00
78 10/10/2025 13031 Village of Paw Paw Laboratory Services - Colilert/Nitrate 120.00
79 10/21/2025 13053 Village of Paw Paw Colilert/Nitrate Testing 120.00
80 10/31/2025 10312025 DW Huntington National Bank CC Reconciliation 10.01.25-10.31.25 111.61
81 10/31/2025 10312025 EF  Huntington National Bank CC Reconciliation 10.01.25-10.31.25 110.00
82 10/21/2025 V10212025 4  Kazlauskas, Mindie Mileage Reimbursement - Dental Assisting 09.30.25-10.08.25 108.08
83 10/29/2025 13055 Spencer's Soft Water Water Cooler Rental/DrinkingWater/Dental Distilled Water 103.55
84 10/21/2025 13049 Staples Business Credit Pebble Mice - 4 ea 102.88
85 10/21/2025 13048 Dental Refund 85.00
86 10/10/2025 V10102025 2  Hoenes, Missie Mileage Reimbursement - Dental Assisting 09.01.25-09.30.25 81.06
87 10/29/2025 13071 New Age/Landmark Inc Laboratory Services -Water Testing 80.00
88 10/29/2025 13085 West Michigan Document Shredding, LLC Secure Shredding Service - 10.28.25 67.00
89 10/21/2025 13050 Summit Fire Protection Fire Extinguisher Inspection - Lawrence 56.00
90 10/29/2025 V10292025 1  Adkins, Kelly Mileage Reimbursement - IT/EWBW 10.03.25 & 10.10.25 55.02
91 10/21/2025 V10212025 5  Slack, Lisa Mileage Reimbursement Dental Assisting 10.06.25 & 10.14.25 54.04
92 10/10/2025 V10102025 7  Vogt, Kimberlee Mileage Reimbursement - Lead/Rabies Control 09.01.25-09.30.2 44.80
93 10/21/2025 13040 Hanson Beverage Services Dental Supplies - SEAL PROGRAM 43.75
94 10/21/2025 13047 Semco Energy Utilities - Natural Gas 09.08.25-10.07.25 41.69
95 10/1/2025 49403974 Blue Cross Blue Shield of Michigan CDH Monthly Fee - August 39.50
96 10/29/2025 13084 Dental Refund 39.00
97 10/21/2025 V10212025 2  Desai, Nancy MALPH Conf. Reimbursements - Meals 37.83
98 10/26/2025 102625 Blue Care Network of Michigan HRA Payments 34.91
99 10/21/2025 13043 State of Michigan Laboratory Testing 34.50
100 10/31/2025 1025-TR102991 WageWorks, Inc WageWorks Fees - October 32.40
101 10/21/2025 V10212025 3  Kazlauskas, Mindie Mileage Reimb 09/30/25 - Dental Assistance 27.02
102 10/29/2025 V10292025 6  Kazlauskas, Mindie Mileage Reimbursement - Dental Assisting 10.21.25 27.02
103 10/29/2025 13064 Garrett, JB Partial Home Loan Refund Trans# 48714150 25.00
104 10/29/2025 13077 Summit Fire Protection Fire Extinguisher Inspection - Dowagiac 25.00
105 10/29/2025 13078 Dental Refund 20.20
106 10/29/2025 13083 Voices for Health Translation Services 19.20
107 10/29/2025 V10292025 2  Balcuns, Nicole Mileage Reimb - Imms Clinic/S&H Visit 17.50
108 10/21/2025 13035 Spencer's Soft Water Water Cooler Rental 14.98
109 10/29/2025 V10292025 3  Davis, James Southwest MEHA Conf 10/21-10/23/25 - Lunch Reimb 12.00
110 10/29/2025 13082 Dental Refund 5.10
111 10/29/2025 13075 Dental Refund 5.00
Total Disbursements - October 2025 $ 704,113.79
Date: 12/4/2025 9:18:52 AM 7 Page: 2



MONTHLY REPORT
December 2025

Hours of Operation:
Monday - Thursday 8am - 5pm
Friday 8am - 2pm

Cass County
Immunizations
Ist & 3rd Wednesdays

STl Testing & Treatment
Thursdays

Dental
Monday - Friday

Van Buren County
Immunizations
Thursdays

STl Testing & Treatment
Wednesdays

Dental
Monday - Friday

Newsworthy
Visit vbcassdhd.org/news

Boil Water Advisory Lifted
for Blue Star Highway
Area

ByHeart Infant Formula
Recall: Important Safety
Alert for Families in Van
Buren & Cass Counties

vbcassdhd.org - (269) 621-3143

Medical Director and Nursing

In early November, the STI/HIV Team provided HIV testing at Cass
County Jail. Immunization and lead nurses attended the IAP Fall
Meeting in Lansing on November 10, followed by the Michigan Care
Improvement Registry (MCIR) Provider Meeting on November 12.
STI/HIV nurse and health promotion staff delivered an STI presentation
at Hartford High School on November 18. To close out the month, fit
testing for nursing staff was conducted.

Arbovirus activity continues to be monitored, including West Nile Virus
and Eastern Equine Encephalitis. View the latest summary here!.
Seasonal influenza activity remains low but is increasing nationally,
primarily among children and young adults. Influenza A H3N2 is
currently the predominant strain in Michigan, with Influenza A HIN1
also emerging. Read the MI Flu Focus? for more details.

For children: Most insurance plans cover flu vaccination at no cost. For
uninsured or underinsured children, the CDC's Vaccines for Children
(VFC) Program is available through our health department. Eligibility
includes ages 0-18, uninsured, underinsured, Medicaid eligible,
Alaskan Native, or American Indian. Qualifying information can be
found here® or call (269) 621-3143 for details.

For adults: if insured, flu vaccines are typically covered, but you can
check with your provider to confirm. For uninsured or underinsured
adults, our health department participates in the Adult Vaccine
Program (AVP).

You can also find vaccination locations at Vaccines.gov* for more
information. For eligibility and scheduling, please call (269) 621-3143.

There's still
time: get
vaccinated to
help fight flu.

Photo

courtesy of
the National
Foundation
for Infectious
Diseases
(NFID).

8 December 2025 - Page1of2


https://www.michigan.gov/emergingdiseases/-/media/Project/Websites/emergingdiseases/Folder3/Weekly_Arbovirus_Summary.pdf?rev=a42c5ee32bbf4e80983102593114ea77
https://www.michigan.gov/emergingdiseases/-/media/Project/Websites/emergingdiseases/Folder3/Weekly_Arbovirus_Summary.pdf?rev=a42c5ee32bbf4e80983102593114ea77
https://www.michigan.gov/flu/-/media/Project/Websites/mdhhs/Folder1/Folder43/MIFluFocus.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/flu/-/media/Project/Websites/mdhhs/Folder1/Folder43/MIFluFocus.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/vaccines-for-children/about/index.html
https://www.vaccines.gov/en/
http://www.vbcassdhd.org/news
http://vbcassdhd.org/
https://vbcassdhd.org/byheart-infant-formula-recall-important-safety-alert-for-families-in-van-buren-cass-counties/
https://vbcassdhd.org/byheart-infant-formula-recall-important-safety-alert-for-families-in-van-buren-cass-counties/
https://vbcassdhd.org/byheart-infant-formula-recall-important-safety-alert-for-families-in-van-buren-cass-counties/
https://vbcassdhd.org/byheart-infant-formula-recall-important-safety-alert-for-families-in-van-buren-cass-counties/
https://vbcassdhd.org/boil-water-advisory-issued-for-south-haven-area/
https://vbcassdhd.org/boil-water-advisory-issued-for-south-haven-area/
https://vbcassdhd.org/boil-water-advisory-issued-for-south-haven-area/

MONTHLY REPORT
December 2025

Hours of Operation:
Monday - Thursday 8am - 5pm
Friday 8am - 2pm

Cass County
Immunizations
Ist & 3rd Wednesdays

STl Testing & Treatment
Thursdays

Dental
Monday - Friday

Van Buren County
Immunizations
Thursdays

STl Testing & Treatment
Wednesdays

Dental
Monday - Friday

Newsworthy
Visit vbcassdhd.org/news

Boil Water Advisory Lifted
for Blue Star Highway
Area

ByHeart Infant Formula
Recall: Important Safety
Alert for Families in Van
Buren & Cass Counties

vbcassdhd.org - (269) 621-3143

Environmental Health

e 47 septic permits e 12 septic final inspections

e 48 well permits e 44 well final inspections

e 27 restaurant inspections e 12 restaurant reinspections

e 1temporary food inspections

Dental Clinic and Outreach

Both clinics were slightly less busy than usual this past month but
remain on track with previous years. Dowagiac served 289 patients,
while Lawrence saw 471 patients. Staff continue to accommodate new
patients as best as scheduling allows.

Beginning January 1, our Lawrence location will offer earlier
appointment times starting_at 7:00 a.m., Monday through Thursday, to
better accommodate patient schedules. To support this expanded
access and improve team efficiency, we will transition to a four-day,
10-hour schedule. Fridays will be reserved for scheduling, triage, and
administrative work, and will be closed to patients.

Our Dowagiac location will maintain its current hours of 8:00 a.m. —
5:00 p.m., Monday through Thursday, with no patient appointments
on Fridays. This adjustment aligns with common practice in the
dental field and allows us to enhance patient convenience an

d optimize staff resources

1 https://www.michigan.gov/emergingdiseases/-/media/Project/Websites/e
mergingdiseases/Folder3/Weekly_Arbovirus_Summary.pdf?
rev=a42c5ee32bbf4e80983102593114ea77

2 https://www.michigan.gov/flu/-/media/Project/Websites/mdhhs/Folderl/Fo

Ider43/MIFluFocus.pdf
3 https://www.cdc.gov/vaccines-for-children/about/index.html
4 https://www.vaccines.gov/en/

9 December 2025 - Page 2 of 2


http://vbcassdhd.org/
https://www.michigan.gov/emergingdiseases/-/media/Project/Websites/emergingdiseases/Folder3/Weekly_Arbovirus_Summary.pdf?rev=a42c5ee32bbf4e80983102593114ea77
https://www.michigan.gov/emergingdiseases/-/media/Project/Websites/emergingdiseases/Folder3/Weekly_Arbovirus_Summary.pdf?rev=a42c5ee32bbf4e80983102593114ea77
https://www.michigan.gov/emergingdiseases/-/media/Project/Websites/emergingdiseases/Folder3/Weekly_Arbovirus_Summary.pdf?rev=a42c5ee32bbf4e80983102593114ea77
https://www.michigan.gov/flu/-/media/Project/Websites/mdhhs/Folder1/Folder43/MIFluFocus.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/flu/-/media/Project/Websites/mdhhs/Folder1/Folder43/MIFluFocus.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/vaccines-for-children/about/index.html
https://www.cdc.gov/vaccines-for-children/about/index.html
https://www.vaccines.gov/en/
http://www.vbcassdhd.org/news
https://vbcassdhd.org/byheart-infant-formula-recall-important-safety-alert-for-families-in-van-buren-cass-counties/
https://vbcassdhd.org/byheart-infant-formula-recall-important-safety-alert-for-families-in-van-buren-cass-counties/
https://vbcassdhd.org/byheart-infant-formula-recall-important-safety-alert-for-families-in-van-buren-cass-counties/
https://vbcassdhd.org/byheart-infant-formula-recall-important-safety-alert-for-families-in-van-buren-cass-counties/
https://vbcassdhd.org/boil-water-advisory-issued-for-south-haven-area/
https://vbcassdhd.org/boil-water-advisory-issued-for-south-haven-area/
https://vbcassdhd.org/boil-water-advisory-issued-for-south-haven-area/

Van Buren/Cass District Health Department (VBCDHD) Board of Health (BOH) Schedule
CY2026 | Updated December 2025

The VBCDHD BOH guides public health services in Van Buren and Cass Counties by ensuring health programs meet

community needs and support a healthier future. The BOH meets monthly on the second Wednesday at 3:00 PM. Meetings

alternate between counties and are open to the public. Meeting agendas and meeting links can be found at vbcassdhd.org.

If you'd like to receive the meeting link via email, please contact the BOH secretary before 2:00 PM on the day of the

meeting at ljaramillo@vbcassdhd.org.

Wednesday, January 14, 2026, at 3:00pm

Wednesday, February 11, 2026, at 3:00pm

Wednesday, March 11, 2026, at 3:00pm

Wednesday, April 8, 2026, at 3:00pm

Wednesday, May 13, 2026, at 3:00pm

Wednesday, June 10, 2026, at 3:00pm

Wednesday, July 8, 2026, at 3:00pm

Wednesday, August 12, 2026, at 3:00pm

Wednesday, September 9, 2026, at 3:00pm

Wednesday, October 14, 2026, at 3:00pm

Wednesday, November 11, 2026, at 3:00pm
Veterans Day

Wednesday, December 9, 2026, at 3:00pm

Cancelled due to county board selections in January.

Van Buren/Cass District Health Department
260 South Street, Lawrence, Ml in the Conference Room

Van Buren/Cass District Health Department
302 S. Front Street, Dowagiac Ml in the Community Center

Van Buren Cass District Health Department
260 South Street, Lawrence, Ml in the Conference Room

Van Buren/Cass District Health Department
302 S. Front Street, Dowagiac Ml in the Community Center

Van Buren/Cass District Health Department
260 South Street, Lawrence, Ml in the Conference Room

Van Buren/Cass District Health Department
302 S. Front Street, Dowagiac Ml in the Community Center

Van Buren/Cass District Health Department
260 South Street, Lawrence, Ml in the Conference Room

Van Buren/Cass District Health Department
302 S. Front Street, Dowagiac Ml in the Community Center

Van Buren/Cass District Health Department
260 South Street, Lawrence, Ml in the Conference Room

Van Buren/Cass District Health Department
302 S. Front Street, Dowagiac Ml in the Community Center

Van Buren/Cass District Health Department
260 South Street, Lawrence, Ml in the Conference Room

10


https://vbcassdhd.org/
mailto:ljaramillo@vbcassdhd.org

COMMUNITY DENTAL CLINIC [PROPOSED] FEE SCHEDULE - 2026

Standard fees

Proposed New Fees

101-150% Federal
Poverty Line (60%

151 - 200% Federal
Poverty Line (35%

201-250% Federal
Poverty Line (20%

CDT-4 Description Updated 7.14.25 (2.25x) discount) discount) discount)

D0120 Recall Dental Exam (periodic) 30.00 67.5 27 43.9 54
D0140 Limited (emergency) exam 46.00 103.5 41.4 67.3 82.8
D0145 Oral Eval/counsel w/ caregiver age <3 32.00 72 28.8 46.8 57.6
D0150 Initial Dental Exam Comprehensive 47.00 105.75 42.3 68.7 84.6
D0180 Complete Periodonal Eval 0 0 - 0
D0190 Screening of a Patient 30.00 67.5 27 43.9 54
D0191 |Assessment of the Patient 30.00 67.5 27 43.9 54
D0210 Full mouth x-rays (complete) 85.00 191.25 76.5 124.3 153
D0220 Single Film 20.00 45 18 29.3 36
D0230 |Additional film (intraoral PA) / each 12.00 27 10.8 17.6 21.6
D0240 Occlusal x-ray 24.00 54 21.6 35.1 43.2
D0270 Bitewing-single film 16.00 36 14.4 23.4 28.8
D0272 2 bitewings 26.00 58.5 23.4 38.0 46.8
D0273 3 bitewings 32.00 72 28.8 46.8 57.6
D0274 4 bitewings 40.00 90 36 58.5 72
D0330 Panoramic film 75.00 168.75 67.5 109.7 135
D1110 |Adult (age 14+) 60.00 135 54 87.8 108
D1120 |Child (age 2-13) 45.00 101.25 40.5 65.8 81
D1206 Fluoride varnish (age 0-5) MA up to 6X yr. 29.00 65.25 26.1 42.4 52.2
D1206 Flouride varnish (age 5-20) MA up to 2X yr. 29.00 65.25 26.1 42.4 52.2
D1351 Sealant 35.00 78.75 31.5 51.2 63
D1354 int carie med app per tooth 30.00 67.5 27 43.9 54
D1510 Fixed Unilateral (age under 13) 201.00 452.25 180.9 294.0 361.8
D1516 Space Main Fixed-Bilateral, Maxillary 278.00 625.5 250.2 406.6 500.4
D1517 Space Main Fixed-Bilateral, Mandibular 278.00 625.5 250.2 406.6 500.4
D1520 Space Main removable unilateral-per quad 242.00 544.5 217.8 353.9 435.6
D1526 Space Main removable bilateral, Maxillary 242.00 544.5 217.8 353.9 435.6
D1527 SpaceMain removable bilateral, Mandibular 242.00 544.5 217.8 353.9 435.6
D1551 Recement Space Maintainer maxillary 51.00 114.75 45.9 74.6 91.8
D1552 Recement Space Maintainer mandibular 51.00 114.75 45.9 74.6 91.8
D1553 Recement Unilat space maintainer 0 0 - 0
D1556 Remove fixed unilateral space maintainer 51.00 114.75 45.9 74.6 91.8
D1557 Remove fixed bilateral space main maxillary 51.00 114.75 45.9 74.6 91.8
D1558 Remove fixed bilateral space main mandib 51.00 114.75 45.9 74.6 91.8

11




D2140 |Amalgam 1 surface 75.00 168.75 67.5 109.7 135
D2150 |Amalgam 2 surface 92.00 207 82.8 134.6 165.6
D2160 |Amalgam 3 surface 108.00 243 97.2 158.0 194.4
D2161 |Amalgam 4 surface 128.00 288 115.2 187.2 230.4
D2330 Composite 1 surface anterior 92.00 207 82.8 134.6 165.6
D2331 Composite 2 surface anterior 110.00 247.5 99 160.9 198
D2332 Composite 3 surface anterior 135.00 303.75 121.5 197.4 243
D2335 Composite 4 surface ant or incisal angle 170.00 382.5 153 248.6 306
D2390 RBC Crown -anterior 200.00 450 180 292.5 360
D2391 Post Composite 1 surface perm 105.00 236.25 94.5 153.6 189
D2392 Post Composite 2 surface perm 133.00 299.25 119.7 194.5 239.4
D2393 Post Composite 3 surface perm 165.00 371.25 148.5 241.3 297
D2394 Post Composite 4 surface perm 195.00 438.75 175.5 285.2 351
D2710 RBC Crown (indirect) 630.00 1417.5 567 921.4 1134
D2712 RBC 3/4 Crown (indirect) 610.00 1372.5 549 892.1 1098
D2740 Porcelain/ceramic substrate 745.00 1676.25 670.5 1,089.6 1341
D2750 Porc. Fused high noble metal 775.00 1743.75 697.5 1,133.4 1395
D2751 Porc. To base metal 660.00 1485 594 965.3 1188
D2752 Porcelain fused noble metal crown 660.00 1485 594 965.3 1188
D2790 Full cast gold 800.00 1800 720 1,170.0 1440
D2791 Full cast base metal 660.00 1485 594 965.3 1188
D2792 Crown full cast noble metal 660.00 1485 594 965.3 1188
D2799 Provisional Crown 250.00 562.5 225 365.6 450
D2910 re-cement inlay or part cover restoration 65.00 146.25 58.5 95.1 117
D2915 Re-cement cast or prefab post & core 65.00 146.25 58.5 95.1 117
D2920 Re-cement crowns 67.00 150.75 60.3 98.0 120.6
D2930 SSC Primary (age under 21) 200.00 450 180 292.5 360
D2931 SSC Permanent (age under 21) 200.00 450 180 292.5 360
D2932 Prefab RBC 185.00 416.25 166.5 270.6 333
D2933 Prefab SSC w/resin window 225.00 506.25 202.5 329.1 405
D2934 Prefab est coat SSC primary 225.00 506.25 202.5 329.1 405
D2940 Protective Restoration 75.00 168.75 67.5 109.7 135
D2950 Core buildup including any pins 180.00 405 162 263.3 324
D2951 Pin rentention per tooth in add to restor 35.00 78.75 31.5 51.2 63
D2952 Cast post & core in add to crown 245.00 551.25 220.5 358.3 441
D2954 Prefab post & core in add to crown 220.00 495 198 321.8 396
D3110 Pulp Capping Direct 45.00 101.25 40.5 65.8 81
D3220 Pulpotomy (under age 13) 125.00 281.25 112.5 182.8 225
D3221 Gross Pulpal Debridment (under age 13) 115.00 258.75 103.5 168.2 207

12




D3230 Pulpal therapy anterior primary (age 0-7) 130.00 292.5 117 190.1 234
D3240 Pulpal therapy posterior primary (age 0-12) 150.00 337.5 135 219.4 270
D3310 RCT Anterior 450.00 1012.5 405 658.1 810
D3320 RCT Bisucpid 545.00 1226.25 490.5 797.1 981
D3330 RCT Molar 650.00 1462.5 585 950.6 1170
D4210 Gingivectomy (4 or more teeth per quadrant) 275.00 618.75 247.5 402.2 495
D4211 Gingivectomy (1 to 3 teeth per quadrant) 155.00 348.75 139.5 226.7 279
D4341 Perio scale & root, pin 4+ per quad 165.00 371.25 148.5 241.3 297
D4342 Perio scale & root, pln 1-3 teeth per quad 110.00 247.5 99 160.9 198
D4346 Scaling Gingival inflamation 75.00 168.75 67.5 109.7 135
D4355 Full mouth debride for eval-diagnose (age 14+) 115.00 258.75 103.5 168.2 207
D4910 Periodontal Maintenance (MA 1x 6mo) 100.00 225 90 146.3 180
D5110 Complete Upper (Maxillary) 950.00 2137.5 855 1,389.4 1710
D5120 Complete Lower (Mandibular) 950.00 2137.5 855 1,389.4 1710
D5130 Immediate Upper (Maxillary) 1050.00 2362.5 945 1,535.6 1890
D5140 Immediate lower (Mandibular) 1050.00 2362.5 945 1,535.6 1890
D5211 Partial upper w/o clasp resin base 700.00 1575 630 1,023.8 1260
D5212 Partial lower w/o clasp resin base 700.00 1575 630 1,023.8 1260
D5213 Partial upper with clasp resin base 1050.00 2362.5 945 1,535.6 1890
D5214 Partial lower with clasp resin base 1050.00 2362.5 945 1,535.6 1890
D5225 Partial upper flexible base w clasp 875.00 1968.75 787.5 1,279.7 1575
D5226 Partial lower flexible base w clasp 875.00 1968.75 787.5 1,279.7 1575
D5410 Upper denture adjustment 60.00 135 54 87.8 108
D5411 Lower denture adjustment 60.00 135 54 87.8 108
D5421 Upper partial adjustment 60.00 135 54 87.8 108
D5422 Lower partial adjustment 60.00 135 54 87.8 108
D5511 Broken complete no teeth damaged mand 140.00 315 126 204.8 252
D5512 Broken complete no teeth damaged max 140.00 315 126 204.8 252
D5520 Broken complete repalce tooth (ea tooth) 135.00 303.75 121.5 197.4 243
D5611 Broken partial no teeth damaged mand 125.00 281.25 112.5 182.8 225
D5612 Broken partial no teeth damaged mand 125.00 281.25 112.5 182.8 225
D5621 Broken cast framework mandiblar 175.00 393.75 157.5 255.9 315
D5622 Broken cast framework Maxillary 175.00 393.75 157.5 255.9 315
D5630 repair or replace clasp 175.00 393.75 157.5 255.9 315
D5640 Replace broken tooth partial (ea tooth) 132.00 297 118.8 193.1 237.6
D5650 |Add tooth to existing partial 150.00 337.5 135 219.4 270
D5660 Add clasp to existing partial 175.00 393.75 157.5 255.9 315
D5710 Rebase complete upper 350.00 787.5 315 511.9 630
D5711 Rebase complete lower 350.00 787.5 315 511.9 630

13




D5720 Rebase partial upper 330.00 742.5 297 482.6 594
D5721 Rebase partial lower 330.00 742.5 297 482.6 594
D5730 Reline complete upper chairside 225.00 506.25 202.5 329.1 405
D5731 Reline complete lower chairside 225.00 506.25 202.5 329.1 405
D5740 Reline partial upper chairside 200.00 450 180 292.5 360
D5741 Reline partial lower chairside 200.00 450 180 292.5 360
D5750 Reline complete maxillary(lab) 300.00 675 270 438.8 540
D5751 Reline complete mand (lab) 300.00 675 270 438.8 540
D5760 Reline maxillary partial denture(lab) 300.00 675 270 438.8 540
D5761 Reline mandibular partial denture(lab) 300.00 675 270 438.8 540
D5810 Interim comp denture(maxil) 670.00 1507.5 603 979.9 1206
D5811 Interim comp denture(mand) 670.00 1507.5 603 979.9 1206
D5820 Interim partial denture(maxillary) 350.00 787.5 315 511.9 630
D5821 Interim partial denture(mandibular) 350.00 787.5 315 511.9 630
D5850 Tissue Conditioning Maxillary 60.00 135 54 87.8 108
D5851 |Tissue Conditioning Mandibular 60.00 135 54 87.8 108
D6240 Pontic porcelain fused to hnob 680.00 1530 612 994.5 1224
D6241  |Pontic porcelain fused to pred base metal 660.00 1485 594 965.3 1188
D6245 Pontic Crn-Zirconia Emax 680.00 1530 612 994.5 1224
D6545 Retainer cast metal for resin bonded fixed prosth 330.00 742.5 297 482.6 594
D6740 Retainer Crn-Zirconia Emax 680.00 1530 612 994.5 1224
D6750 Retainer crn-porc fused hi nob 680.00 1530 612 994.5 1224
D6751 Crown porcelain fused to pred. base metal 680.00 1530 612 994.5 1224
D6790 Retainer crn-full cast hi nob 680.00 1530 612 994.5 1224
D6930 Recement fixed partial denture 100.00 225 90 146.3 180
D7111 Ext coronal remnants deciduous tooth 75.00 168.75 67.5 109.7 135
D7140 Extraction single tooth 95.00 213.75 85.5 138.9 171
D7210 Surgical extraction 175.00 393.75 157.5 255.9 315
D7220 remove impacted tooth - soft tissue 205.00 461.25 184.5 299.8 369
D7230 Remove impacted tooth - partially bony 275.00 618.75 247.5 402.2 495
D7240 Remove impacted tooth - complete bony 310.00 697.5 279 453.4 558
D7250 Surgical removal tooth roots 185.00 416.25 166.5 270.6 333
D7270 |tooth reimplantation/stabilization accident 295.00 663.75 265.5 431.4 531
D7310 |Alveoloplasty per quad w/ extraction 170.00 382.5 153 248.6 306
D7311 |Alveoloplasty w/ext 1-3th/quad 135.00 303.75 121.5 197.4 243
D7320 |Alveoloplasty per quad w/o extraction 210.00 472.5 189 307.1 378
D7321 |Alveoloplasty not in conjunction w/exts 1-3 98.00 220.5 88.2 143.3 176.4
D7471 Removal lateral exotosis 330.00 742.5 297 482.6 594
D7472 remove torus palatinus 350.00 787.5 315 511.9 630

14




D7473 remove torus mandibularis 400.00 900 360 585.0 720
D7510 | & D abscess, intraoral 135.00 303.75 121.5 197.4 243
D7970 Excision of hyperplastic tissue-per arch 220.00 495 198 321.8 396
D7971 Excision of pericoronal gingva 115.00 258.75 103.5 168.2 207
D7972 Surgical reduction of fibrous tuberosity 300.00 675 270 438.8 540
D9110 Emergency treatment pain-minor procedures 75.00 168.75 67.5 109.7 135
D9230 Inhalation of nitrous oxide/analgesia, anxiolysis 60.00 135 54 87.8 108
D9310 Consult per session 65.00 146.25 58.5 95.1 117
D9910 |Application of desensitizing medicament 9.50 21.375 8.55 13.9 17.1
D9930 |Treatment Complication Post Surgical 75.00 168.75 67.5 109.7 135
D9943 Occl Guard Adj 50.00 112.5 45 73.1 90
D9944  |Occl Guard-Hard full arch 400.00 900 360 585.0 720
D9945 Occlusal guard-soft full arch 400.00 900 360 585.0 720
D9951 Occlusal adjustment- limited 50.00 112.5 45 73.1 90
D9972 External Bleaching-per arch 75.00 168.75 67.5 109.7 135
1466 Bleaching Product (Syringe Refills) 40.00 90 36 58.5 72

15




Cass County 2025 Reportable Diseases Presented to: Appointed Membrs of the Board of Health

Date Reported: 12/10/2025 Presented by: Julie Beeching RN, BSN Director of Nursing
. o M YTD | 2024 | 2023 2022 2021 2020
2 L = - S a eb a Ap a Aug ep 0 0 De 0 2024 total total  total total total
acute flaccid myelitis 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
anaplasmosis 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
animal bites 4 4 8 5 5 7 9 8 7 7 5 69 59 66 73 66 63 61

anthrax

arboviral encephalitides

eastern equine

west nile

zika

babesiosis

blastomycosis

botulism

brucellosis

campylobacteriosis 2 2 1

candidiasis 1

chancroid

chickenpox/varicella

cholera

coccioioidomycosis 1

CPO (CP-CRE) 1

cryptosporidiosis

cyclosporidiosis

dengue fever

diptheria

E-coli 0157:H7

ehrlichiosis

encephalitis

giardiasis 1 1

glanders

guillain-barre syndrome

haemopholis influenzae 1 1

hantavirus

hemolytic uremic syndrome

hemorrhagic fever virus

njw|lo|lo|o|o|Nv]|olo|v|o|lolo|lo|lo|ollolr | |o|lololr|lun|o|lo|lo|lo|lo|lo|lo|lo|o
0O NOOOOPOORFRPROOODODOORRPFPOOOODOUUOOOOOOOOOoO

[=] o] i{-} | S} fo] fo] [o] [«} | S] fo] fo] [} (o] o] o] fo} (o} [} I lo] (o} (o] o] o] [o} [« ] o] ol |} (o] (o] o] o} o) =}

[«} {38 ENJ RN] | V] foll fo) [o] o) | S] fo] fo) Il] o) (o] o] fo) lo] o} I lo] jo} flo] o) (o] o) [l [o] lo) | lo] jo} flo] o} (o] fo]
OO OO NOOOODOO0OOWODODOODOOFrRROOORFRrR OOWOORr OO oo oo
OO LVOUNUIOODOOFRFRF OO0 ODODO0ODODODO0OOPPOOORER OO UIOO OOOOoOOoOOoOOo

ONOOOOWNMNDNOOODODOOODOOOODOOONRPROOOOOPPOOOOOOOOO

hepatitis A

hepatitis B 1 2

hepatitis C acute 3 1 1

hepatitis C chronic 1 3 2 1 1 1 3 4 1 17 17

hepatitis non A non B 0 0

histoplasmosis 1 1 1 1 4 2 1

influenza virus ILI and confirmed 186 411 141 75 67 7 0 3 98 150 121 1259 953 1049 933 267 677
kawasaki disease 0 0 0 1 0 0
legionellosis 1 1 0 0 1 2 3
leprosy 0 0 0 0

16



Cass County 2025 Reportable Diseases Presented to: Appointed Membrs of the Board of Health
Date Reported: 12/10/2025 Presented by: Julie Beeching RN, BSN Director of Nursing

D YTD 2024 | 2023 2022 2021 2020
2024 total total total total total

0 0

D
O
>
O
O
O
O
D
-

o
o
o
o

leptospiriosis

listeriosis 2 0

[N
o
[N
[e)]

lyme disease 2 2 1 2 1

malaria

measles

melioidosis

meningitis - aseptic 2

meningitis - bacterial

meningococcal disease

MERS-CoV

mumps

orthopox virsu

pertussis 1 2 3 2

plague

polio

prion disease

psittacosis

Q fever

rabies

rubella

salmonellosis 1

SARS

shigellosis

spotted fever

STEC - shiga toxin e-coli 1

staphylococcus aureus MRSA

N OOOOO0OWOODODOODODODOOODOONNOOO

streptococcus pneumonia,Invasive 1 1 1 1 1

=
o

streptococcus pyogenes grp A 1 1

tetanus

toxic shock syndrome

trichinellosis

tuberculosis

tularemia

typhoid fever

vibriosis

VISA(5)/VERSA(4)

O 0O 0O 0000000 UOFRrROO0OO0OFRROO0OO0ODO0ODODODO0ODO0ODO0OOFRR OOONOOR MO
O 0O 0O 000D O0OO0OO0ONOOODODOODWOODODODOODODOODOODOORr OO o
O 0O 0O 000000 WPMAMOOODOOPPOOOODOOODOODOOODONOOO W

yellow fever

[l k=l =] =] =] o] o} lo] o} {a} § S] IV} fol I (o] ol fol | ) o] [o] o] fol lo] o) fa} o] lo] o] lo] o] o] | V) (o] fo} (o} fo] (o} o]
[ (=l =] o] (o] fo) jlo} o] fo} (o] F 4 16] fo] fol [o] | 1l fo) F o) (o] lo} jo] flo] fo) fo] § S jo] lo] lo} (o] o] [o] o] fo} o] B ) o)
[l [e] o] o) (o] fo) jo} lo] jo} (o] [V} 10} fo] Jo} (o] § ) [o} F ) o} (o] fo} jo} o] [o} [o] § 3] jo} fo] lo} (o] o] jo} o] fo} o] IV} o)

O OO0 00000 OoOOo

yersiniosis 1 0 2 0

COVID-19 68 46 17 13 4 7 2 10 47 10 14 238 439 480 729 3748 5253 2895

RSV pediatric mortality (< 5 yrs of age 0 0 0 na na na na

17



Van Buren County 2025 Presented to: Appointed Membrs of the Board of Health

Reportable Diseases Date Reported: 12/10/2025 Presented by: Julie Beeching RN, BSN Director of Nursing
D YTD | 2024 | 2023 2022 2021 2020
0 0 Repo g Period i oh _ An - Aug an O 0 De 0 2024 total total total total total
acute flaccid myelitis 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
anaplasmosis 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
animal bites 11 12 21 17 18 23 17 25 21 14 9 188 136 150 117 185 131 151
anthrax 0 0 0 0 0 0
arboviral encephalitides 0 0 0 0 0 0
eastern equine 0 0 0 0 0 0
west nile 0 0 0 0 0 0
zika 0 0 0 0 0 0
babesiosis 0 0 0 0 0 0
blastomycosis 1 1 1 1 1 0 0
botulism 0 0 0 0 0 0
brucellosis 0 0 0 0 0 0
campylobacteriosis 1 1 1 3 1 9 4 2 22 17 18 12 13 16
candidiasis
chancroid
chickenpox/varicella 1 1
cholera
coccioioidomycosis
CPO (CP-CRE) 1
cryptosporidiosis 1 1

cyclosporidiosis
dengue fever
diptheria

E-coli 0157:H7
ehrlichiosis
encephalitis
giardiasis 1 1 1 1
glanders

guillain-barre syndrome
haemopholis influenzae 1 1 2
hantavirus

hemolytic uremic syndrome
hemorrhagic fever virus

i k=l =l =l =l (=1 =l =l il =l =1 =l k=l =l =l L k=l k=l k=1 Ll =] k=)
[l =l =] fol (o] o) Jo} [o] § J (o] o] (o} jo] fo} [o] ] Jo} o] (o} {1V} fo} =)

AN R, OOONOODUWLVUNOOOOR UVIFOORFR OONOODOOOOOODOoO

W NOOOOPMODOPLPOOODOOONOREROOOO
P NOOOONRPFOWOOODOOORMMEFRr OO OOO
A LT O OOOFRPROOWOODODOOWEOOOOOoODOo

O|w|w|Oo|r|O|Oo|O|+|O|O|d|O|O|O|O|OC|O|N|R|O|O|N|O|O

hepatitis A 1

hepatitis B

hepatitis C acute 1 1 1 11 11

hepatitis C chronic 1 2 1 2 1 1 18 20 18 12 13 17
hepatitis non A non B 0 0 0 0 0 0
histoplasmosis 3 1 4 0 0 3 8 3 0
influenza virus ILI & Confirmed 710 1460 714 365 184 29 2 12 277 315 241 4309 3288 3547 | 3070 1739 5 1699
kawasaki disease 0 0 0 0 1 0 0
legionellosis 0 3 4 0 1 3 3
leprosy 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

18



Van Buren County 2025 Presented to: Appointed Membrs of the Board of Health

Reportable Diseases Date Reported: 12/10/2025 Presented by: Julie Beeching RN, BSN Director of Nursing

. > YTD | 2024 | 2023 2022 2021 2020
2 > a eb a Ap a Aug ep 0 0 De 0 2024 total total  total total total
0 0 0 0
0 0 1 0

o
o
o

leptospiriosis
listeriosis
lyme disease 1 1 5 10 5 4
malaria
measles
melioidosis
meningitis - aseptic 1 1 1 1 1
meningitis - bacterial 1
meningococcal disease
MERS-CoV

mumps

orthopox virsus 1
pertussis 1 1 1 1
plague

polio

prion disease
psittacosis

Q fever
rabies
rubella
salmonellosis 2 1 1 1
SARS
shigellosis
spotted fever
STEC - shiga toxin e-coli 1 1
staphylococcus aureus MRSA 1 1 1
streptococcus pneumonia Inv. 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1
streptococcus pyogenes grp A 1 2 1 1
tetanus

Strep toxic shock syndrome
trichinellosis

tuberculosis 1
tularemia
typhoid fever
vibriosis
VISA(5)/VERSA(4)
yellow fever
yersiniosis 1 1 2 1 0 4

COVID-19 118 104 42 18 5 2 12 25 60 15 24 425 802 879 1254 7475 8410 3877
RSV pediatric mortality (< 5 yrs of age 0 0 0 na na na na

Monthly

o
o

N
[e)]
N
o
N
o
N
w
[y
[N
[N
[e)]

OFRP OO0 00000 Fr OO0 WwWNOODOo

[Eny
w

wlo|Nv|O|ln|o|lo|o|o|o|o|o|lun|o|lo|o|o|d|r|O|O|O
wlo|lw|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|un]|o|o|o|o|un|r|O|O|O

w|Nv|[Oo|o|o|un|Oo|o|o|o|o|o|o|d|r|Oo|o|Oo|Nv|In|O|O|O
OFRPORFRPONOORFRPRORFRPROODOODODODOONOOO

= h O Ul O

=
[N
[N
[N

=
o
=
[
[Eny
[
=
[

=
[Ye]

OO R OOO0ODO0OO0OO0OWNNPRPONOPMMOOOODOOOOODOOONOOODO
O 0O 0O 000 O0OFRONUUONRPRRPFROUVOOOOOOOPMMOOOOOPOOOWDO

O OO OO0 Oo0OOoOOoOOo
O OO0 0000 O0oOOoOOo

N|O|Oo|Oo|o|o|r|Oo|o|o|un
wl|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|r]|e
wlo|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|wn

19



	1. VBCDHD BOH Agenda_12102025.pdf
	2. 11122025 Board of Health Minutes - Unapproved.pdf
	3. October 2025 Disbursements.pdf
	Sheet1

	4a. December 2025 VBCDHD Monthly Report.pdf
	4b. VBCDHD BOH Schedule CY2026.pdf
	5a. Dental Clinic [proposed] fees 2026 and sliding scale.pdf
	7b. Cass Monthly CD stats 12-2025.pdf
	7b. VB Monthly CD stats 11-2025.pdf



